Revised
BRT PSC Item #6
May 21, 2010

Office of the General Counsel

MEMORANDUM
To: Policy Steering Committee
From: Kenneth C. Scheidig, General Counsel
Date: May 21, 2010

Re: Local Hire Provisions in Project Labor/Stabilization Agreements

A question has arisen regarding the District's ability to include a local hire provision in any
Project Labor Agreement or Project Stabilization Agreement (herein referred to as “PLA”)
which the District may elect to enter into in connection with the Bus Rapid Transit (“‘BRT”)
project.

A PLA is an agreement between the project contractor, subcontractors, and the union(s)
representing the construction trade workers. Under the Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
definition, contractor and subcontractors on a project and the union(s) agree on terms and
conditions of employment for the project, establishing a framework for labor-management
cooperation to advance the project owner/manager’s procurement interest in cost, efficiency
and quality. PLAs were, for many years, not permitted on federally funded projects by virtue
of an Executive Order signed by President George W. Bush. In February 2009 President
Obama repealed the Bush Executive Order and issued an Executive Order encouraging
PLAs on any federal project in excess of $25 million.

One potential element of a PLA is a local hire preference. In relation to the BRT project, a
local hire preference means that the union(s) and contractor awarded a construction contract
agree that a percentage of the workforce performing contract work will be local hires. The
“‘local” area is defined under the PLA. A local hire preference becomes an issue if the
contract is funded in whole and in part by Department of Transportation and/or FTA funds. If
FTA funded, contract procurement processes must follow FTA Third Party Contracting
Guidelines (FTA Circular C 4220.1F). Except in the case of Architectural Engineering (A&E)
services, FTA procurement guidelines prohibit specifying in-state or local geographic
preferences, even if those preferences are imposed by State or local laws or regulations.
(See FTA C 4220.1F pages VI-4) (g).

The question arises as to whether a local hire preference embedded in a PLA and in an
awarded construction contract constitute a local geographic preference prohibited by the
FTA. To answer the question, we have been in discussions with the Port of Oakland and
BART with respect to their experience with local hire provisions in their PLA’s. In neither
case has a local hire provision been approved by federal funding agencies, although the
BART experience has been more positive than that of the Port of Oakland.



Re: Local Hire Provisions in Project Labor/Stabilization Agreements
May 21, 2010
Page 2

Port of Oakland experience:

The Port of Oakland’s PLA associated with its expansion project contains the following local
hire provision:

Section 6. The parties agree to a goal that residents of the Port's Local Impact Area
(defined as Alameda, Emeryville, Oakland and San Leandro) will perform fifty
percent (50%) of all hours worked, on a craft-by-craft basis but, that if sufficient
and qualified workers from the Local Impact Area are not available to achieve
this goal, then the residents of the Port's Local Business Area (defined as
Alameda County and Contra Costa County) may be utilized. The Contractor
shall make good faith efforts to reach this goal through the utilization of normal
hiring hall procedures listed in the Schedule A agreements and the resources of
the “Community Resource Centers” set out in Section 3 of this Article. Sanctions
may be imposed for failure to meet the goals or demonstrate “good faith” effort to
do so. In cases of alleged noncompliance, the issue may be referred by the
Social Justice Committee to the Administrative Committee for resolution. |If a
majority of the Subcommittee can make no resolution, the issue may then be
referred by the Social Justice Subcommittee to Step 3 of the grievance
procedure of Article IX for submission to an arbitrator for a final and binding
determination. For purposes of resolution of any dispute arising under this
Section, the Port shall be considered a party-in-interest with full right of
participation in the arbitration proceeding.

The Port has been in discussions with the Department of Transportation (“DOT”) for
approximately one year with respect to this provision. DOT has taken the position that
pursuant to the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1956 (“FHWA”) no local hire provision can
be included in a DOT funded project. We were advised by the Port of Oakland that the
City of Los Angeles has faced similar issues with the DOT over the past few years and
is considering pursuing a “legislative fix”. We were also advised that the DOT has not
accepted the City of Oakland's local hire language for the 18th Avenue Caltrans
(FHWA) funded project.

The Port of Oakland is actively pursuing a “work around” for the DOT restriction. One
avenue is determining whether the DOT will accept an amendment to the PLA that
eliminates the local hire provision for the DOT funded part of the project. In the alternative,
the Port is considering expanding the definition of the local area so that it is broad enough to
pass DOT scrutiny. Also being discussed is the possibility of including "best efforts"
language regarding local hire and removing all potential sanctions against non-compliant
contractors. To date, the situation continues in limbo.

The BART experience:

The BART experience with local hire preference has been in connection with the Oakland
Airport connector project which qualified for AARA funding. BART entered into a Project
Stabilization Agreement for this project which contained a local hire preference. The



Re: Local Hire Provisions in Project Labor/Stabilization Agreements
May 21, 2010
Page 3

procurement documents for the construction contract did not restrict in any manner who can
bid on the project (no restriction or preference to local contractors). Instead, the contract
awardee was required to accept the terms of the PLA and the local hire preference
embedded in the agreement. BART argued to the funding source that AARA funding was
intended to create jobs by funding state and local government projects and the local hire
preference furthered that objective. In addition, BART maintained that local hire provision did
not constitute a geographic preference or a restrictive specification because there was no
requirement that prospective bidders be “local”. BART was reportedly optimistic in terms of
a favorable federal ruling when the FTA pulled the funding on other grounds.

The DOT Position

Although the local Building Construction Trades Council is willing to negotiate local hire
provisions in their PLA’s, DOT has not received any direction from the Obama
Administration to take a more favorable view of local hire provisions. We understand that
until the DOT receives such direction it plans to consistently enforce the restriction against
local hiring preferences.

The BRT project may provide an opportunity for AC Transit and the cities of Berkeley,
Oakland and San Leandro to work with the Port of Oakland, or separately, to advocate with
one voice to the Obama Administration the importance of clarifying its position on local hiring
practices in project labor agreements.

Conclusion

In light of other agencies experience with local hire provisions in PLA’s, it would be
premature to opine that the District will be able to include such a provision in any PLA it
negotiates for the BRT project. However, given the number of local agencies interested
in ensuring local jobs in connection with their contributions to the BRT project, the
District may be able to wield more political clout with FTA in arguing this point than if it
were waging the battle alone. Nonetheless, we can anticipate, in the absence of
action by the Obama Administration, that it may take some effort and time to achieve
the local hire goal given the experience of other agencies.

NEW INFORMATION

(1) The DOT will allow "good faith effort" local hire provisions so long as there are no
mandatory arbitration provisions to enforce or determine "good faith". The recent BART
agreement is an example of a provision that is OK.

(2) the DOT has allowed certain "demonstration” PLA's to proceed with local hire
provisions to determine whether there is negative competitive impact flowing from the
local hire provisions. We only know of two of these. It is our understanding that an



Re: Local Hire Provisions in Project Labor/Stabilization Agreements

May 21, 2010
Page 4

additional factor was the presence of HUD funds in the projects which do not have the
anti local hire provision.

Also the DOT did post new guidelines, but they are not illuminating



BUS GUIdance fechnology

Presentedl 1o, the: East Bay: BR
Policy: Steernng Committee

May, 21, 2010




What Is Bus Guidance?

Fechnelogy that auitemates or assists the
GPErator In| the steerng, decking,
acceleration and decelerauon of the lBus

Fhere are two' general types: o guidance:
a Viechanical
s Electronic

Eurrther infermatien - Wikipedia




Benefits of Bus Guidance

Improeved venicular safety. In traific

Better ride guality: andimproved passenger:
canIn safety

May: pemmit narrewer decdicated Bus Ianes
May: reduce leng-ternm pavement cest
Alds leveltboeanding) and

Creates narrew: horizental gaprat Boarding
platfierm te cemply: Withr ADA




BUS Guidance: echnology

Mechanical Glidance
s Kassel Kerl (England & threughoeut EUrepe)
a Concrete Guideway w/ Guide wheel (Essen, Manheim, Adelaide)

s Hoerzontal Guide wheel fior Precisionr Decking (Cleveland,
Eugene)

a Subsurface guide: rail (INancy, Erance)

Electronic Guidance
n Opticall Guidance (Rouen Erance; Las Vegas NV)
s Magnetic Guidance (Netherlands)

s Magnetic Guidance with Redundant Tlechnelegies: (Lane
County/AC Transit)

Magnetic: Guidance
Driferential GRS
InertiallNavigatien System




O
B—
<b)
XA
<b)
7
7
©
N2

Used throughout Europe




Concrete Guideway: (O-Bahn)
Essen, Germany: & Adelaide
Ustrialia




Guide wheels for Precision Docking




Subsurface Guide Rall
Nancy Erance

LY i
& \
‘;{-‘. l-\ ‘N | .
1 b T SOOI
"'“K».'.\" i
I| HiE L “*n.jii"; |
L\_I | i' : l._'.l']i 4
1] 3 i
i \I |
\ ]




Electronic Guidance
Visual Detection

Siemens-Systra
(Rouen Erance,
Las; Vegas NV)

Usesi eptical
SEensers o’ ioliow,

painteatines




Magnetic Guidance

Phileas BUs,
Eindhoven,
Netherlands




\Wihat optiens are possible fior BRI?

Guide wheelfierr precision decking With ne
mechanical guidance aleng Bus lanes

Magnetic Guidance




Current Research

Califernia-Oregen; Venicle Assistance &
Autemation (VAA) Team

s USPDOIF Eederal Tiransit Administration and Research
andl Innoevation Administration

Caltrans
AC Transit

Lane Tiransit Distrct (Eugene-Springfield)
Palitners fer Advanced Tiransit and Highways: (PATIH)

Local Bay: Area Industrial partners
- Containerlirac
- Integrated MotionfInc.
- Bol McGee's Machine Co.

International Interest




California-Oregon VAA Preject

2003 — Automated Bus
demonstration

a lharee-bus plateen with fully
automated functions

2005 — I'TS World

Congress, San Erancisce
s Demonstration of Lane AssIst
and Precision Docking Systems




Califernia-Oregon VAA Preject
(cont.)

2008 — Field Tests and Demonstration, East: 14™
Street, San [Leandro

= First real world! test:

Urban setting, Uneven street crowns, petnoeles and olstacles;
mixed with' ity trafiic

. Jlest demonstrated systen's acecuracy: and: reliannity
1/4 Inchi telerance

. |Lessons learned will benefit future develepment and futtre
depleyment

- Demoenstrated strong Inter-agency: partnersnips
. Positive respense! frem; transit agencies




Current Research Activities

2009-2011 Revenue Service Test

x Spoensored by the Federal Transit Administration’s Intelligent
lranspoertation Systems Joint Program, Office

Califernia/Oregon team selected magnetic guidance as the
primary guidance technolegy based on thoerough evaluation and
technicallmeriits

Preject Goals

Demonstrate: the technical merits and feasipility: off VAA technelegy in
revenue senvice

Assess' henefits; and costs
Evaluate attitudes ol passengers: and operators

Budget
s $1.9 millioniin federal funds + $500k California cost share




Research Project Purpose

Address deployment ISsues

Assess henefits and costs In revenue-
SErvice operations

Decument public perceptions

Eull range off VAA applications for BRI
x Highway: and urkan BRIF application
a Precision decking and guidance
s Very lew: te highway speeds (65 mph)
s Degrees of drver assistance




VVAA Project Description

LTD; EUgene Oregon

2.5 miles ofi single/double
dedicated ROW.

x  One 60ft New Elyer BRT bus

s Eunctions to be tested:

Lane guidance fer on dedicated
BRT lane

Precision docking

AC Tiransit

A4 mile section of HOV lane; on
the Califiernia State Route 92
freeway from| Hesperian Blvd. te
the Hayward-San; Mateo Bridge: toll
plaza

JWo buses
Functions to be tested:

Lane guidance on HOV lane
Guidance through toll bridge




Research Project Scheaule

Viajor ACtIVILIES

m  System Design (3/10/2010)

s Component Development (4/15/2010)
Bus Compoenent Integration (9/1/2010)
Software' Develepment and Integration (11/25/2010)
lirack Preparation (9/30/2010)
Perfermance test andiEvaluation (3/15/201.1)
Operation Preparation (9/15/2011)
Operational Test and Data Collection: (©/30/2011)

Independent evaluation to e conducted by Center;
fer Urban| fransportation Research—University. of
SeutihrElerda




The Technoelogy.

PATHESYStem

s Differentiall GPS + Inertial Navigatien
Systems; + Magnets to; steer bus

s Redundancy te ensure perfermance & salety.

Differentiall GPS Unit




Magnets In Pavement +
Sensors onl the Bus

Minimally stiject te) Interference
x Missing magnets; (detectanie)
s Unwanted magnets (detectanie)

Not compatiple withrheavily: damaged asphali
Installation; costs off $10-20k per lane mile
Normaintenance needed




Magnets In Pavement +
Sensors onl the Bus




Steeringl Actuator Prototype
Fabrlcatlon & Beneh Tests




Computer Processors




GPS/INS System
Proetotype (for AC Transit)

o
’Iq'
L)

4 I
A A
& J
~ 7




Research Project Next Steps

Complete Bench Tiesting

Installfeguipment en PATIH Bus

'est on closed track

Fransplant equipment enter AC Tiransit hus
Test on clesed track

Test onl Sk 92 Without passengers

est on SR 92 Withr passengers

Complete evaluation




Figure 1. East Bay BRT Implementation Timeline 2010 - 2016 Revised May 3, 2010

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Q4|Q1|Q2/Q3/Q4]Q1 Q2 Q3 |Q4

ACTIVITY

Board Adopts LPA

Draft PR

Caltrans Approval/Final PR

Design Exception Fact Sheets

Prepare Administrative Draft FEIS/FEIR,106/4(f) & Submit to FTA
Circulate FEIS/FEIR

Cities' Process - MOU

Board Certifies FEIS/FEIR

CEQA Notice of Determination (NOD)

FTA Issues Record of Decision (ROD)

11|{Update Small Starts

12|Procurement for Program Management/Project Controls
13|Procurement for Designer

14[Complete Conceptual Design

15|Design (PE, VE, FD)

16|Evaluate Delivery Method

17|ROW Evaluation

18|Project Construction Grant Agreement (PCGA)

19|FTA Funding ($15 Million) Milestones

20|FTA 'Before' Survey

21|Vehicle Procurement (Select Vendor, Design, Production)
22|Advertise Bid & Award (Construction Procurement)
23|Construction

24|Testing & Start-up

25|Open for Service

OO (N[O [W|N|F-

=
o

Obligated

* Quarters are in calendar years

AC Transit



LD REVISED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, APRIL 20, 2010

-
LI R ) 18

VEHICE OF THE CITY CLg ,
OAKLAND LR (apv‘oved as to Form and Legality

10APR2] PN 4: 35 u@%m
ﬂ City Attorney

OAKLAND CITY COUNCIL
ResoLuTioNNo. 82690 c.m.s.

Introduced by Councilmember

RESOLUTION ADOPTING OAKLAND’S “LOCALLY PREFERRED
ALTERNATIVE” TO BE INCLUDED AND ANALYZED IN THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT/REPORT FOR THE AC
TRANSIT EAST BAY BUS RAPID TRANSIT PROJECT

WHEREAS, in 1998 the AC Transit District (“AC” ) initiated work on the “Major Investment
Study” to closely examine alternatives for transit service on several transit corridors in their
service area; and

WHEREAS, in 2000 a Major Investment Study Policy Steering Committee comprised of
membership from all affected jurisdictions, including the City of Oakland (“City”) was convened
to provide guidance to the study from a corridor-wide perspective; and

WHEREAS, in 2001 the Policy Steering Committee recommended a preferred route or “Locally
Preferred Alternative” (LPA) for a Bus Rapid Transit project that specified the corridor
alignment of Telegraph Avenue to International Boulevard/East 14" Street in the cities of
Berkeley, Oakland, and San Leandro; and

WHEREAS, Bus Rapid Transit is a mode of transit service that has some or all of the following
characteristics: Dedicated Travel Lanes; Level Boarding Platforms; Off-Board Fare Collection;
and Real-Time Arrival Signs; and,

WHEREAS, in May 2007, AC Transit, in collaboration with the Federal Transit Administration
released a Draft Environmental Impact Statement/Report for the continued development of the
East Bay Bus Rapid Transit Project (Project); and

WHEREAS, in July 2007 the City of Oakland formally submitted comments in response to the
Draft Statement/Report, which comments focused on route alignment, traffic, parking, economic,
construction, roadway maintenance and operational impacts, among other concerns; and,

WHEREAS, AC Transit wishes to complete a Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report
for the Project in order to compete for Federal Transit Administration “Small Starts” Funding;
and



WHEREAS, According to Federal Transit Authority rules, AC Transit requires the City to
identify a “Locally Preferred Alternative” to be analyzed in the Final Environmental Impact
Statement/Report for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Oakland’s General Plan Policy T3.6 Encouraging Transit calls to
“encourage and promote use of public transit... on designated “transit streets”, and Policy 73.7
Resolving Transportation Conflicts call for the City to “resolve any conflicts between public
transit and single occupant vehicles in favor of the transportation mode that has the potential to
provide the greatest mobility and access for people...”; and

WHEREAS, City staff has worked with AC Transit staff to refine the Project design to the
extent possible, to meet City goals and to implement a project incorporating transit, bicycle,
pedestrian and vehicle improvement; and

WHEREAS, the City of Oakland adopted a Bicycle Master Plan in 2007 that identifies planned
bicycle facilities on section of the proposed Bus Rapid Transit route; and

WHEREAS, City staff has worked with AC Transit staff to refine the Porject design to the
extent possible, to meet City goals and to implement a project incorporating transit, bicycle,
pedestrian and vehicle improvement; and

WHEREAS, in January, 2010, City staff presented a draft “Locally Preferred Alternative” to the
community in a series of public meetings, and in February, 2010, City staff presented the draft
“Locally Preferred Alternative” to the Planning Commission for review and comment; and

WHEREAS, City staff carefully reviewed public comment and concerns and proposed
refinements to the proposed design of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City’s adoption of a “Locally Preferred Alternative” for inclusion and analysis
in the Project Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report, is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to, without limitation, CEQA Guidelines section 15262;
now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED: That the City adopts as its “Locally Preferred Alternative” to be included and
analyzed in the Project Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report the draft design option
presented to the public in January and February, 2010, as modified by staff in March 2010, and
attached hereto as “Exhibit A”; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: The City requests that AC Transit investigate including left-door
loading vehicles in the Project in order to minimize parking impacts associated with construction
of stations, especially in Fruitvale and East Oakland; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: The City requests that AC Transit include in the Final
Environmental Impact Statement/Report a full analysis of: parking losses and potential
mitigations, the impacts of loss of local service on the elderly and disabled, security issues
related to off-bus cash payment and increased walk distance to stops, and economic impacts to
local businesses during and post-construction; and be it



FURTHER RESOLVED: That the City, in addition to adopting said “Locally Preferred
Alternative”, request that AC Transit fully analyze a “Rapid Bus Plus” option that includes all of
the facilities of Bus Rapid Transit but without dedicated bus-only lanes; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: The City reserves the right to make changes to the Project at the
conclusion of the Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report, based on the studied impacts
and the adequacy of proposed mitigations of these impacts; and be it-

FURTHER RESOLVED: That staff shall return to the Citv Council upon AC Transit’s
completion of the Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report with a project proposal for the
Council’s consideration that includes mitigations for traffic, and parking impacts. prior to
entering into any agreements with AC Transit.

APR 2 0 2010
IN COUNCIL, OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA, , 20

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:
AYES - ##fgle#g,; DE LA FUENTE, KAPLAN, KERNIGHAN, NADEL, QUAN, REID, and PRESIDENT BRUNNER — 7
NOES - &~ /
ABSENT - -

ABSTENTION - &~

0 o ~ e S - | ; "
Cxensed - Brooks~( i LaTonda Simmons
\. City Clerk and Clerk of the Council
of the City of Oakland, California




PLANNING ¢ DEVEIOPMENT
- Land Use Planning, 2120 Milvia Street, Berkeloy, CA 94704

Tel: 510.981.7410 TDD: 510.981.7474 Fax: 510.981.7420 Email: Plannin Lberkeley.ca.us

' May 6, 2010

Mary King

Interim General Manager
AC Transit

1600 Franklin Street
Oakland, CA 94612

Re: City of Berkeley’s Locally Preferred Alternative
Dear Ms. King:

On April 29, 2010, the Berkeley City Council selected two Locally Preferred Alternatives (LPA)
to be evaluated in the FEIS/R for its portion of a preposed Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project,

The two proposals are the Mayor’s Reduced Impact Alternative (Alternative B) with the
modifications set forth in the motjon (see attached Annotated Council Agenda with draft motion)
and the Rapid Bus Plus proposal. The draft motion approved at the meeting is attached, along
with the Mayor"s proposal, the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Rapid Bus Plus
proposal, and two April 28" letters from the Rapid Bus Plus organization detailing changes to
the MOU. Iam hereby forwarding these to you in compliance with the City’s September 22,
2009 agreement with AC Transit. As the City Council’s action is not final until the minutes are
adopted, the City Clerk will forward to you a final motion upon adoption of the minutes,
currently scheduled for May 18,2010, ' '

We look forward to reviewing the FEIS/R when it is complete. If you have quéStions regarding
the Council’s LPA, please contact me or Elizabeth Greene in the Planning and Development
Department.

Planning and Development Director
City of Berkeley

Attachments: ' _
1. Annotated agenda with draft motion from April 29, 2010 Berkeley City Council
meeting . ,
2. Mayor’s proposal regarding the Reduced Impact Alternative (Alternative B)
- 3. Rapid Bus Plus description from AC Transit MOU (February 24, 2010) |
4. Rapid Bus Plus amendments per two Michael Katz e-mails (April 28, 2010)

Land Use Planning, 21 20 Milvia Street, Berkeloy, CA 94704
Tel: 510.981.7410 TDD: 510.981.7474 Fax: 510.981.7420 Email: Planning@ci.berkeley.ca.us



CcCl

Phil Kamlarz, Berkeley City Manager
Deanna Despain, Berkeley City Clerk
Michael Katz, Rapid Bus Plus Coalition
Cory LaVigne, AC Transit :

2120 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.705-8111 TDD: 510.644.6915 Fax: 51 0.883.6543
. ) ’ E-mail: planhing@ci.berkeley.ca.us .



[ aTyer

Office of the Mayor
ACTION CALENAR
April 29, 2010

To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Tom Bates

Councilmember Linda Maio
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli-

Subject: Bus Rapid Transit Final Environmental Impact Study/Report Build
Alternatives

Recommendation
That the Berkeley City Council adopt a resolution to study the following three (3)
alternatives for the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Final Environmental Impact Study/Report:
¢ Alternative A - Build recommendation (modified staff proposal)
¢ Alternative B - Reduced Impact proposal (including most Rapid Bus Plus
features)
¢ Alternative C — No Build

Alternatives A and B should include all of the following standard features:
e NextBus (real time) schedule signage
¢ Standardized proof of payment system
e Security features
¢ Minimize parking loss

Other features that should be included if technically or financially feasible:
o Elevated and/or Leyel boarding platforms,
e Far side bus stations combined with queue jump lanes when needed.

Background
After careful consideration of the Planning Commission recommendation, staff -

recommendation, and comments from the public, we have modified the staff proposal
and the Rapid Bus Plus proposal to better address the needs and concerns of the city
and its residents.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 @ Tel: {(510) 981-7100 @ TDD: (510) 981-6903 @ Fax: (510) 981-7199
E-Mail: mayor@ci.berkeley.ca.us Website: http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/mayor



Contact Persons

Mayor Tom Bates 510-981-7100
Councilmember Linda Maio 510-981-7110
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 510-981-7150
Attachments:

Resolution

Table — Comparative Chart of Bus Rapid Transit FEIR Study Build Alternatives A and B
Alternative A — BRT FEIR Study - Build Alternative
" Alternative B — BRT FEIR Study - Reduced Impact Alternative



-3-

Table — Comparative Chart of Bus Rapid Transit FEIS/R Build Alternatives A and B

Location Build Alternative Reduced Impact Alternative
Telegraph Two-way Telegraph with Dedicated Maintain existing street configuration with
Avenue. Center Bus Lanes and Median Stops no dedicated lanes. Stops at bulb outs
South of with raised platforms where possible and
Dwight Way queue jump lanes where necessary.
Telegraph Maintain current configuration of one-way | Maintain current configuration of one-way
Avenue northbound Telegraph, with southbound northbound Telegraph, with southbound
North of Dwight | bues on two-way Dana. No dedicated buses on two-way Dana. No dedicated
Way lane. lane.

Bike lanes in both directions. Bike lanes in both directions.
Bancroft Way Two-way Bancroft Way from Dana. Two-way Bancroft Way from Dana.
to Shattuck Eastbound buses in dedicated bus lane. No dedicated bus lanes, bike lanes in both
Bike lanes in both directions on Bancroft | directions on Bancroft.
if feasible. Two-way Durant to College with no BRT
Two-way Durant to College with no BRT | bus service. Two-way bike lanes on
bus service. Two-way bike lanes on Durant.
Durant.
Shattuck Two-way Shattuck Avenue. No Two-way Shattuck Avenue. No dedicated
Avenue dedicated bus lanes. Queue jump lane if | bus lanes. Queue jump lane if necessary.
Bancroft to necessary. Right turn lane with prioritized signal for

Center Street

Right turn lane with prioritized signal for
buses from Bancroft Way onto Shattuck
Ave.

buses from Bancroft Way onto Shattuck
Ave.

Shattuck
Avenue/
Shattuck
Square to
University
Avenue

Two-way Shattuck Avenue from Center
St. to University Ave. All buses on west
side of triangle. No dedicated lanes.
Shattuck Ave will be reconfigured for
higher volume traffic.

Shattuck Square (east side of triangle)
will have no bus service, and will be
calmed to one lane northbound for
parking, loading and increased
pedestrian space. Right turns only from
Shattuck Square to Addison or University.

Two-way Shattuck Avenue from Center St.
to University Ave. All buses on west side
of triangle, No dedicated lanes. Shattuck
Ave which will be reconfigured for higher
volume traffic. .

Shattuck Square (east side of triangle) will
have no bus service, and will be calmed, to
one lane northbound for parking, loading
and increased pedestrian space. Right
turns only from Shattuck Square to
Addison or University.

Bus Layover

Layover will be relocated to a location on
either Hearst or Berkeley Way. Buses
will travel northbound on two-way
Shattuck (west leg) from Center to Hearst
or Berkeley Way; right on Hearst or
Berkeley Way to potential layover zone,
then return via Oxford, University and
Shattuck.

Layover will be relocated to a location on
either Hearst or Berkeley Way. Buses will
travel northbound on two-way Shattuck
(west leg) from Center to Hearst; right on
Hearst or Berkeley Way to potential
layover zone, then return via Oxford,
University and Shattuck.

Details of lane configurations will be determined by a traffic study, to be done by AC Transit.




( { UTY OF

-

Recommendation for BRT FEIR Study :

Alt. A - Build Alternative

Layover location on either

Hearst or Berkeley Way
2-Way Shattuck Ave, Shattuck Single lane northbound
Center to University. @ University Use for parking, loading
2-way BRT on Shattuck and open space
Ave. (west side of No bus service
triangle) Remove layover at
No dedicated lanes. %hgttuck Center Street
enter ﬂ "~ Bancroft .
: Right turns only at
@ Dana/Telegraph Addison and University
BANCROFT
Bancroft @ Bancroft ancro
‘5—_; @Elisworth North of Dwight
2-Way, from Dana a
Buses in mixed flow WB; 2 Maintain current 1-Way
EB in bus lane Telegraph Telegraph with BRT in
Durant converted to @ Blake mixed flow NB,
2-way to College Ave. BRT SB on Dana,
. No dedicated lanes.
Telegraph Dana becomes 2-way
@ Derby with bike lanes.
‘ H
South of Dwight §
-
Center Bus Lanes N
Median stops Telegraph
One auto lane in each @ Ashby
direction with left turn
lanes where needed.

d

to OAKLAND



Recommendation for BRT FEIR Study :

Alt B — Reduced Impact Alternative

Layover location on either

H

Hearst or Berkeley Way
Shattuck Square
2-Way Shattuck Ave " Shattuck Single lane northbound
Center to University, @ University Use for parking, loading
2-way BRT on Shattuck and open space
Ave. (west side of No bus service
triangle) - Remove layover at
No dedicated lanes Shattuck o Center Street
@ Center Bancroft X
@ Dana/Telegraph Right turns only at
Addison and University
BANCROFY
@Sgattucl; 5 t
ancroft ancro '
o @Elisworth \ 2 North of Dwight
2-Way , from Dana é > orth of BWig
No bus lanes 2 Maintain current 1-Way
Bike lanes in both Telegraph Telegraph with BRT in
direction @ Blake mixed flow NB,
2-Way Durant to College BRT SB on Dana,
No dedicated lanes.
Telegraph Dana becomes 2-way
@Derby 11 _ with bike lanes.
s
&
2-Way Telegraph B
with mixed flow traffic in )
all lanes Telegraph
No dedicated lanes @Ashby
Queue jump lanes
if needed
Elevated boarding
stations on bulb outs
where possible u

to OAKLAND



CAMBRIDGE

Transportation leadership you can trust.

Memorandum

TO: Beth Greene, Matt Nichols, Kara Vuicich, Jim Cunradi, Tina Spencer
FROM:  Andrew Tang and Michael Snavely
DATE: Wednesday, February 24, 2010

RE: “Rapid Bus Plus” Corridor Improvement Alternative Details - Amended 2/24/10

This memorandum describes the Cambridge Systematics (CS) team’s understanding of the
“Rapid Bus Plus” (RBP) design alternative to be studied alongside the full bus rapid transit
(BRT) service design in AC Transit’s forthcoming Final Environmental Impact Report/Study
(FEIR/S). RBP concept details were defined based on proposals developed by the Rapid Bus Plus
Coalition, as agreed upon in discussions facilitated by City of Berkeley staff on December 2,
2009, and finalized in subsequent talks with RBP Coalition members. The first section describes
the details of the RBP design alternative to be studied for the FEIR/S. The second section
describes further analyses that will be conducted to provide additional information.

Rapid Bus Plus Alternative to Be Studied in FEIR/S

The RBP design alternative will be studied alongside BRT service in the forthcoming FEIR/S,
and will assume the following design characteristics:

Segmented Route

The RBP design alternative will consist of two route segments: : 1) from the southern terminus
in San Leandro to 11th/12th Street and Broadway in Downtown Oakland, the alignment will
feature the same stops, design, and operations as the BRT design alternative; and 2) from
11th/12th Street and Broadway in Downtown Oakland to Downtown Berkeley, the alignment
will feature “Rapid Bus Plus” design, the details of which are described below.

Vehicles

Rather than a 60-foot articulated bus, it is assumed that the RBP segment will be served by a
standard 40-foot bus for the purposes of analyzing system benefits and costs. In addition, an
additional analysis will be performed to estimate the relative greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
benefits of running smaller 30-foot buses.

555 12'" Street, Suite 1600
Oakland, CA 94607
tel 510 873 8700 Www.camsys.com fax 510 873 8701



Local Service and Alignment

RBP service will enhance existing 1R service, while retaining local Route 1 service. By default,
the RBP route will follow the current Route 1/1R alignment between Downtown Oakland and
Downtown Berkeley. This RBP alignment would require no change in Southside Berkeley
traffic-circulation directions.

However, should the City of Berkeley choose to study a BRT alignment that converts Bancroft
Way to two-way travel, southbound RBP will follow Bancroft Way eastbound to Dana St,
Dana St southbound to Dwight Way, Dwight Way eastbound to Telegraph Ave, and Telegraph
to points south.

Service Frequency

For the purposes of modeling RBP performance, assumed service frequency will be based on
demand. It is estimated that load matching will result in off-peak headways of 10 to
12 minutes. Peak-period headways will be no longer than 7.5 minutes.

Stop Locations

Generally, RBP stop locations in the Oakland-Berkeley segment will remain at current 1R Rapid
Bus stop locations. Where they are deemed feasible and operationally beneficial by the CS
team, nearside bus stops at signalized intersections will be shifted to the far side. It is
understood that shifting stop locations might result in additional parking loss. Any and all
parking loss will be detailed in a side analysis. No curb extensions, bulb-outs, or sidewalk
reconstruction will be implemented. Where they do not coincide with RBP stops, local Route 1
bus stops will operate as usual from their current stop locations.

Should the City of Berkeley choose to study a BRT alignment that converts Bancroft Way to
two-way travel, the southbound stop currently located on Durant Ave at Dana would move to
Bancroft Way at Dana.

Bus Boarding

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), it is assumed that buses will
deploy a ramp for wheelchair access, as is done today on Route 1R buses. Buses will feature all-
door boarding at all stops.

Fare Payment

To reduce bus dwell times, RBP would employ proof-of-payment. Each bus stop will include a
modest ticket vending machine, similar to pay-and-display parking meters, where passengers
could purchase a ticket. Use of TransLink cards and other prepaid passes will also be
encouraged.

e
-2- CAMBRIDGE



Other Stop Amenities

Stop amenities will be similar to current 1R rapid bus stops, with limited seating and rain
shelters provided. Additional amenities such as canopies, security cameras, and lighting will
not be included. All RBP bus stops will feature wireless real-time bus information for waiting
passengers. Although less reliable than hard-wired real-time displays, wireless displays will be
significantly less costly to implement and are similar to those found at 1R stops today. It is
assumed that wireless real-time bus information will also be made available via the Internet and
mobile devices.

Queue Jump Lanes

Queue jump lanes will be added on the approach to major intersections to the extent that they
are feasible and beneficial. Three locations in particular have been identified for queue jump
lane consideration: Dwight, Ashby, and Alcatraz. Additional locations may be added if
deemed feasible and operationally beneficial by the CS team. Any and all parking loss will be
detailed in a side analysis. Whether right-turning vehicles can use RBP queue jump lanes is yet
to be determined. It is understood that queue jump lanes will likely result in additional parking
loss.

Signal Phasing

It is assumed that signal phases will be adjusted to maximize performance at intersections with
RBP-related bus improvements. Intersections with queue jump lanes might require pedestrian
signal phases - existing pedestrian traffic counts will help the consultant team identify the fea-
sibility of such phases. Intersections without physical RBP improvements will not be subject to
signal adjustments since it would be inconsistent with the requirements for environmental
analysis. A side analysis will be performed to assess the potential for travel time savings on
upper Telegraph (north of Dwight Way) if signals there were optimized.

Additional Analyses

In addition to the RBP design alternative analysis described above, the following items will be
addressed by the CS team:

e The current presence of actuated signals throughout the Oakland-Berkeley corridor will be
confirmed;

e The number of parking spaces lost as a result of the implementation of queue jump lanes
and any station location adjustments will be recorded and presented alongside study
results;

e A side analysis will be performed to determine the GHG savings of using a 30-foot bus
(relative to the standard 40-foot bus) in the Oakland-Berkeley segment;

e
-3- CAMBRIDGE



e A side assessment of the potential benefits to be gained by enacting bus merge priority law
will be included; and

e A side analysis will be performed to assess the potential for travel time savings on upper
Telegraph Avenue if signal phases were optimized.

e
-4- CAMBRIDGE



IN THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN LEANDRO
RESOLUTION NO. 2010-054

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING SAN LEANDRO’S LOCALLY PREFERRED
ALTERNATIVE (LPA) TO BE INCLUDED AND ANALYZED IN THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT/REPORT (EIS/R) FOR AC TRANSIT’S BUS
RAPID TRANSIT (BRT) PROJECT

Recitals

WHEREAS, in 1998 the AC Transit District (“AC Transit”) initiated work on the “Major
Investment Study” to closely examine alternatives for transit service on several transit corridors
in its service area; and

WHEREAS, in 2000 a Major Investment Study Policy Steering Committee comprised of
members from all affected jurisdictions, including the City of San Leandro (“City”) was
convened to provide guidance to the study from a corridor-wide perspective; and

WHEREAS, in 2001 the Policy Steering Committee recommended a preferred route or
“Locally Preferred Alternative” (LPA) for a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project that specified the
corridor alignment of Telegraph Avenue to International Boulevard/East 14™ Street in the cities
of Berkeley, Oakland, and San Leandro; and

WHEREAS, BRT is a mode of transit service that has some or all the following
characteristics: Dedicated Travel Lanes; Level Boarding Platforms; Off-Board Fare Collection;
and Real-Time Arrival Signs; and

WHEREAS, in May 2007, AC Transit in collaboration with the Federal Transit
Administration released a Draft Environmental Impact Statement/Report (“Draft EIS/R”) for the
continued development of the East Bay Bus Rapid Transit Project (Project); and

WHEREAS, in July 2007 the City of San Leandro formally submitted comments in
response to the Draft EIS/R, with comments focused on route alignment, traffic, parking,
economic, construction, roadway maintenance and operation impacts, among other concerns; and

WHEREAS, AC Transit wishes to complete a Final Environmental Impact
Statement/Report (“Final EIS/R”) for the Project to compete for Federal Transit Administration
“Small Starts” Funding; and

WHEREAS, according to Federal Transit Administration rules, AC Transit is required to
consider a “Locally Preferred Alternative” adopted by San Leandro, to be analyzed in the Final
EIS/R for the Project; and

WHEREAS, City staff has worked with AC Transit staff to refine the Project design to
the extent possible to meet City goals and to implement a project incorporating transit, bicycle,
pedestrian and vehicle improvement; and



WHEREAS, in 2009, City and AC Transit staff presented design options to the
community in a series of public meetings, and carefully reviewed public comment and concerns
and proposed refinements to the proposed Project; and

WHEREAS, in March 2010, City staff presented the draft LPA to the Planning
Commission for review and comment; and

WHEREAS, the City’s designation of a “Locally Preferred Alternative” for inclusion and
analysis in the Project Final EIS/R is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
pursuant to, without limitation, CEQA Guidelines section 15262; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED that the City designates, as its ‘“Locally Preferred Alternative” to be
included and analyzed in the Final Environmental Impact Statement/Report (‘“Final EIS/R”), that
BRT shall terminate at the Downtown San Leandro BART Station with dedicated bus lanes from
the north City Limit to approximately Georgia Way with local service provided by traditional or
express bus service from the Downtown San Leandro BART Station to the BayFair BART
Station; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED that the City requests that AC Transit include in the Final EIS/R
a study of extending BRT to the BayFair BART Station with dedicated bus lanes from the north
City Limit to Georgia Way and from Blossom Way to Bancroft Avenue. The City reserves the
right to make changes to the Project at the conclusion of the Final EIS/R based on the studied
impacts and the adequacy of proposed mitigations of these impacts.

Introduced by Councilmember Prola and passed and adopted this 17th day of May, 2010,
by the following called vote:

Members of the Council:

AYES: Councilmembers Gregory, Prola, Reed, Souza, Starosciak; Mayor Santos 6)
NOES: Councilmember Stephens )
ABSENT: None 0)

attest: Y UAdMop ‘Hﬂ/wﬁ@\

Marian Handa, Ci}ly Clerk

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-054 2



	Item 6.pdf
	Item 7.pdf
	Item 8.pdf
	Item 8 2.pdf
	Item 8 3.pdf
	Item 8 4.pdf

